
Page # 1 Posted: September 5, 2013 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT CORRINA 
WILLIAMS, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 877-5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
To: James Gentry – Chairman 

Jimmy Dunn -  Vice Chairman 
Kent Horsley 
Mark Maciel  
Mac McKinney 
Rohan Ramlackhan 
Eric Weiss  
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Laura Smith 
Kelly Carson 

 
RE: Agenda – September 9, 2013 - 6:30 PM 

Commission Chambers, City Hall 
 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 5, 2013 MEETING  
 

ANNEXATION, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT, REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

4. 14890 W Colonial Drive (Bello, Luis) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID # :  27-22-27-0000-00-066 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

5. 16106 Marsh Road, Suites 102 & 103 (My Nite Out, LLC) 
 Parcel ID # :  04-23-27-0302-03-000 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

To the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, October 7, 2013 at 
6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 
A REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

AUGUST 5, 2013 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Chairman James Gentry called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and 
Zoning Board to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers. The invocation 
was given followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Chairman James Gentry, Vice-Chairman James Dunn, Board Members: Kent Horsley, Mac 
McKinney, Mark Maciel, and Eric Weiss.  (Rohan Ramlackhan arrived at 6:50pm) 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  
None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:   
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Ed Williams, Senior 
Planner Laura Smith, Senior Planner Stephen Pash, Planner Kelly Carson, and Customer 
Service Representative Kathy Rathel. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held on July 1, 2013. 
 

Motion by Jimmy Dunn to approve the above minutes.  Seconded by Kent Horsley, 
the motion carried unanimously 6-0.  

 
ANNEXATION, REZONING, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS 
(Public Hearing) 
 

4. 750 S. Park Avenue (Thomas & Dawn Deloach Trust) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for a 0.22± acre 
single-family property located at 750 S. Park Avenue.  The applicant has requested 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

annexation with an initial zoning of R-2 and a land use designation of Low Density 
Residential.  It is consistent with the surrounding area and City Staff recommends approval 
of Ordinances 13-45, 13-46 and 13-47 subject to staff recommendations. 
 

Motion by Kent Horsley to recommend approval of Ordinances 13-45, 13-46 and 
13-47 with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “A”).  Seconded by Jimmy 
Dunn, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 
5. 1205 E Fullers Cross Road (Gilkey Organization, LLC) 

Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for an 11.1± acre 
parcel located on the north side of East Fullers Cross Road directly across the street from the 
entrance into the Tuscany neighborhood.  The applicant has requested initial zoning of R-1B, 
which would allow 75’ wide lots, and a land use designation of Low Density Residential.  It 
is consistent with the surrounding area.  Current proposal is for them to develop 26 single 
family lots.  The applicant would still apply for the Preliminary Subdivision, Construction 
Plans, and a Final Subdivision Plan before everything can be approved.  City Staff 
recommends approval of Ordinances 13-48, 13-49 and 13-50 subject to staff 
recommendations. 
 
Board Member Kent Horsley mentioned that this was an item that had been on the books for 
a number of years but with a different owner and different plans.  It has been planned for 
development for a number of years.  This application is with a new developer and at the 
Public Meeting there were no objections from people in the neighborhood. 
 

Motion by Kent Horsley to recommend approval of Ordinances 13-48, 13-49 and 
13-50 with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “B”).  Seconded by Mark 
Maciel, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 
6. 950 Vineland Road (Carrasquillo, Crucita) 

Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for a 0.24± acre 
property located at 950 Vineland Road.  It is currently developed with a single-family home.  
The applicant has requested annexation with an initial zoning of R-NC and a land use 
designation of Residential Neighborhood Commercial.  It is consistent with the surrounding 
area.  Recently annexed properties to the north have received the same zoning and land use.  
City Staff recommends approval of Ordinances 13-51, 13-52 and 13-53 subject to staff 
recommendations. 
 
Board Member Kent Horsley questioned the R-NC zoning and his concerns regarded 
allowing commercial into residential area.  Senior Planner Pash explained that the owners 
could do an office but it would be thru Special Exceptions and be brought back to the Board.  
There are some small types of light commercial things allowed but nothing major and most 
would have to come back thru Board hearings. 
 

Motion by Jimmy Dunn to recommend approval of Ordinances 13-51, 13-52 and 
13-53 with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “C”).  Seconded by Eric 
Weiss, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

7. 948 Vineland Road (Goncalves, Antonio) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a rezoning application for a 0.55± acre property 
located at 948 Vineland Road just north of the previous application.  It is already located 
within City limits with a zoning of R-2.  The owner is requesting to rezone it to R-NC 
(Residential Neighborhood Commercial) which is consistent with the existing land use 
designation on the property and consistent with the surrounding area.  City Staff recommends 
approval of Ordinances 13-54 subject to staff recommendations. 
 

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of Ordinance 13-54 with staff 
recommendations (Attached Exhibit “D”).  Seconded by Kent Horsley, the motion 
carried unanimously 6-0. 

 
8. 700 Garden Commerce Parkway (Winter Garden Commerce Center) 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a proposal for a rezoning of 44.14± acres from I-1 to 
PID (Planned Industrial District).  The applicant is requesting rezoning of a portion of the 
Winter Garden Commerce Center, including an 18 acre parcel located just to the south, so 
outdoor storage can be included as a permitted accessory use within the subdivision.  This 
project is located on Story Road which was platted several years ago and has not been 
developed since.  There are 20 lots on the north portion in Phase I of this industrial 
subdivision that have not been built upon but the roads and all infrastructures are in place.  
The applicant has purchased or is in a contract to purchase 17 of the 20 lots and is requesting 
to rezone those lots to PID.  City Staff has gone thru the process with the applicant and has 
worked hard to make sure the outdoor storage is consistent with a high-end business park.  
Staff feels that the conditions in place in this Ordinance will help allow this project to be 
developed, including outdoor storage, in a manner that is consistent with the covenants and 
restrictions that were originally put in place with this subdivision.  PNC Bank owns the 18 
acre parcel included in this rezoning request and when their property is developed in a future 
phase they can have the same uses and same conditions in place.  City Staff recommends 
approval of Ordinance 13-42 subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Board Member James Gentry questioned what was going to be allowed to be stored outside 
and if there were any restrictions other than the 20’ height maximum.  Senior Planner Smith 
stated there were none but the applicant mainly wanted to store semi-trailers.  The minimum 
height of the surrounding wall was 6’ but Staff put in very strict landscaping standards which 
required having one 12’ to 14’ canopy tree, at time of planting, every 50’ along the wall with 
2 understory trees between the canopy trees and this would be monitored by Code 
Enforcement.  The landscaping would increase the line-of-sight so the stacked or stored items 
would not be visible from the right-of-way.  This subdivision was also getting improved 
architectural standards on the buildings written specifically to create a look more like a high-
end light industrial Business Park and less like an Industrial Subdivision.  Board Member 
Kent Horsley stated a concern with the height of the outdoor storage and wanted to know 
what would keep another recycler from coming in and stacking their bundles.  Senior Planner 
Smith clarified that recyclers were not allowed in the permitted uses of this PID district.  She 
also stated when the lower 18 acres are developed, the road will be further developed and a 
cul-de-sac will be put in or the road would be extended to West Colonial depending on the 
access issues. 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 4 
 

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of Ordinance 13-42 rezoning 
approximately 44.14± acres from I-1 to PID subject to the conditions attached to 
Staff Report with the first reading by City Commission to be held on August 8, 
2013, and with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “E”).  Seconded by Eric 
Weiss, the motion carried 5-1 with Board Member Kent Horsley opposing. 

 
FINAL PLAT / PRELIMINARY PLAT / LOT SPLIT (Public Hearing) 

 
9. 315 E Fullers Cross Road (Highland Groves) 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a Preliminary Plat application for the Highland Groves 
Subdivision.  This project came before the Board in July for rezoning to PUD.  The applicant 
proposes to get the preliminary plat approval for 186 single family lots.  This request is 
consistent with the comprehensive plan and the approved PUD zoning.  City Staff 
recommends approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman stated this Preliminary Plat should have had a Developer’s 
Agreement executed and agreed upon between the City and the Developer and recorded prior 
to consideration for approval.  The one included was executed improperly by the agent 
instead of the trustee of the LF Roper Trust and Raymer F. Maguire III as the owner and, if 
the Zoning Board was so inclined to approve the Preliminary Plat, recommended making the 
approval contingent and conditioned upon the Developer’s Agreement being fully executed 
and recorded prior to this being effective with a time specific of 30 days. 
 
General discussion regarding the required setbacks which was stipulated in the zoning 
previously approved and the setbacks being shown are just house footprint examples. 
 
(Rohan Ramlackhan arrived at 6:50pm) 

 
Motion by Jimmy Dunn to recommend approval of the preliminary plat for 315 E 
Fullers Cross Road contingent and conditioned upon the signing of the Highland 
Groves Developers Agreement as presented with the execution and recording of 
within 30 days and with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “F”).  Seconded 
by Mark Maciel, the motion carried unanimously 7-0. 

 
10. 16303 Marsh Road (Crooked Lake Preserve) 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a Preliminary Plat application for Crooked Lake 
Preserve located at 16303 Marsh Road.  This project came before the Board in July for a 
rezoning to UVPUD.  The applicant requests preliminary plat approval for 140 single family 
lots.  This request is consistent with the comprehensive plan and the approved UVPUD 
zoning.  City Staff recommends approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Carol McGowin of 1613 Walkerton Court, Winter Garden Florida, was present on behalf of 
the Orange County Public Schools.  Orange County Public Schools objects to the project 
going forward as there is no CEA or concurrency agreement in place as defined by the 
interlocal agreement or state statute.  She further stated this project does not comport with 
local ordinances, the ILA, or the county charter agreement that was adopted by Orange 
County voters in November 2012. 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 5 
 

Community Development Director Ed Williams replied that we appreciate any comments 
that come from the School Board whether it is for P & Z or City Council.  He further stated 
the School Board’s comments tonight were inappropriate in that this is a subdivision pre-plat 
approval and the time to voice objections would have been at the comprehensive plan 
amendment or the rezoning hearing.  Community Development Director Williams asked the 
Planning Board to not consider the comments in their deliberations, but, if the board 
members approved or denied the preliminary plat based on the School Boards comments, the 
board member must state such for the record.  Background: the High School does not have 
capacity.  The problem has been around for 9 years and the reliever high school has been in 
the budget but the school board has been unsuccessful in getting the high school approved.  
Other developments in this area have been approved with agreements and allowed to go 
forward.  This developer has been presented with an agreement that states he must pay the 
fees but cannot go forward until the high school is designed.  In the interlocal agreement with 
the school board there is a dispute resolution provision that the school board has not availed 
themselves of yet.  The City is willing to meet with the school board in an effort to find an 
agreement that treats this developer as fairly as the other developers and recommends the 
Board Members allow this project to go forward and allow the City to negotiate with the 
School Board. 
 

Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat for 16303 
Marsh Road with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “G”).  Seconded by 
Mark Maciel, the motion carried unanimously 6-0 with Jimmy Dunn recusing 
himself due to a conflict. 

 
CITY OF WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT UPDATES 

 
11. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Ordinance 13-55 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a text amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
State recommended incorporating the acreage annexed in the Marsh Road area 
(approximately 146 acres) into the numbers shown for acreage within the UV Land Use 
description.  The amendment also clarified some language within the same policy that 
previously had been a disconnect with another project. 

 
Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of Ordinance 13-55 with the first 
reading by City Commission scheduled for August 8, 2013, and with staff 
recommendations.  Seconded by Jimmy Dunn, the motion carried unanimously 7-0. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 
 
APPROVED:   ATTEST: 
   
 
 

  

   
Chairman James Gentry  Customer Service Rep Kathy Rathel 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 7 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 8 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 9 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 10 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 11 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 12 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 13 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 14 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 15 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 16 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 17 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 18 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 19 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 20 
 

 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 21 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 22 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 23 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 24 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 25 
 

 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 26 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 27 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 28 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 29 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 30 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 31 
 

 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 32 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 33 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 34 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 35 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 36 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 37 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 38 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 

 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 39 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 40 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 41 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 42 
 



 

 

AUGUST 5, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 43 
 

 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  September 5, 2013 MEETING DATE:   September 9, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 14890 W Colonial Drive Road (ANNEXATION, ZONING, FLU) 
 PROJECT NAME Bello Annexation 
  

PARCEL ID# 
 
27-22-27-0000-00-066 

  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Zoning, and Future Lands Use 

designation on property located at 14890 W. Colonial Drive.  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Luis Bello 
  

CURRENT ZONING: A-1 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: C-2 
  

CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Commercial 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 0.74 ± acre enclave located on the south side of W. Colonial 
Drive east of Avalon Road and west of West Pointe Villas 
Boulevard. The applicant has requested Annexation into the City, 
Amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Commercial, 
and Rezoning of the property to City C-2 Arterial Commercial 
District. (See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-56, Ordinance 13-57 

and Ordinance 13-58. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, September 12, 
2013. 

  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-56 
 Ordinance 13-57 
 Ordinance 13-58 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

14890 W Colonial Drive 
 

ANNEXATION, FLU MAP AMENDMENT, REZONING 
 
 

 
 



 

 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 

SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – ZONING – FLU AMENDMENT 

  14890 W. COLONIAL DRIVE (0.74 +/- ACRES) 

  PARCEL ID #:  27-22-27-0000-00-066 

APPLICANT: LUIS BELLO 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 

Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property is located at 14890 W. Colonial Drive and is approximately 0.74 ± acres. 

The map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 



Bello Annexation 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    September 5, 2012 

Page 2 
 

 

 

 

The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 

(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Commercial, and 

rezoning the property to C-2 Arterial Commercial District.  The subject property is located 

adjacent to the West State Road 50 Overlay District, which contains additional design standards.      

 

In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the the Commercial 

land use include retail, service, and professional activities. The zoning classifications that are 

consistent with the Commercial land use designation include C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, PCD, and INT. 

 

The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 

elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 

of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

EXISTING USE 

The subject property is currently developed with a manufactured home.   

 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 

The property located to the north and east is vacant commercial land, zoned C-2 and located in 

the City. The property located to the south is developed with West Pointe Villas Apartment 

complex, zoned R-3 and located in the City. The property to the west is vacant commercial land, 

zoned C-2 and located in the City.  The surrounding properties to the north, east, and west are 

also located with the West State Road 50 Overlay. 

 

PROPOSED USE 

The owner is proposing to annex the property and keep the existing maunufactured home.   

 

PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 

The City has sufficient capacity to provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other 

services regularly provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The 

property will be served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden 

Fire Department under the First Response System. 

 

SUMMARY 

City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. Annexation will provide a more 

efficient delivery of services to the property and further the goals and objectives of the City of 

Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves.   



Bello Annexation 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    September 5, 2012 

Page 3 
 

 

 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 
 

 

 



Bello Annexation 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    September 5, 2012 

Page 4 
 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 

 

 

Subject property changed 

from Orange County Low 

Density Residential to 

City Commercial 



Bello Annexation 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    September 5, 2012 

Page 5 
 

 

 

ZONING  MAP 
14890 W. Colonial Drive 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property change 

from Orange County A-1 

to City C-2. 



 

Ordinance 13-56 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-56 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 0.74 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 14890 
WEST COLONIAL DRIVE ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
WEST COLONIAL DRIVE, EAST OF AVALON ROAD AND 
WEST OF WEST POINTE VILLAS BOULEVARD INTO THE 
CITY OF WINTER GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE 
CITY BOUNDARIES TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION 
OVER SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 0.74 ± 
acres located on the south side of West Colonial Drive, east of Avalon Road and west of 
West Pointe Villas Boulevard and legally described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, which 
land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and standards set forth in § 
171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 
over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 



 

Ordinance 13-56 

Page 2 of 3 
 

apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 

Ordinance 13-56 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 27-22-27-0000-00-066 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Ordinance 13-57 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-57 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 0.74 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 14890 WEST COLONIAL DRIVE ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF WEST COLONIAL DRIVE, EAST OF 
AVALON ROAD AND WEST OF WEST POINTE VILLAS 
BOULEVARD FROM ORANGE COUNTY LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL TO CITY COMMERCIAL; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13

th
 of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 

Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24

th
 of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.74 ± 
acres of land located at 14890 West Colonial Drive on the south side of West Colonial 
Drive, east of Avalon Road and west of West Pointe Villas Boulevard, and legally 
described in ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to amend the 
Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use classification from 
Orange County Low Density Residential to City Commercial; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 

Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Commercial as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-56, this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 
land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 



 

Ordinance 13-57 

Page 2 of 4 

determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 

Ordinance 13-57 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 27-22-27-0000-00-066 

 

 



 

Ordinance 13-57 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B"  
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

14890 W. Colonial Drive 
 

 
 

Subject property changed from Orange Low 

Density Residential Rural to City Commercial 



 

Ordinance 13-58 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-58 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.74 ± ACRES 

LOCATED AT 14890 WEST COLONIAL DRIVE ON THE SOUTH 

SIDE OF WEST COLONIAL DRIVE, EAST OF AVALON ROAD 

AND WEST OF WEST POINTE VILLAS BOULEVARD FROM 

ORANGE COUNTY A-1 CITRUS RURAL DISTRICT TO CITY C-

2 ATERIAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.74 ± acres of 

land located on the south side of West Colonial Drive, east of Avalon Road and west of West 

Pointe Villas Boulevard, and legally described in Section 1 of this ordinance has petitioned the 

City to rezone said property from Orange County A-1 Citrus Rural District to the City’s C-2 

Arterial Commercial District zoning classification, therefore; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 

Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 

this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 

evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 

rezoning the Property to C-2 Arterial Commercial District contained within the City of Winter 

Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  

 
  

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 

 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 

Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 

legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange County A-1 Citrus 

Rural District to City C-2 Arterial Commercial District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 

 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 

then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 

the effective date of Ordinance 13-57 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 

City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 

as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 

 

 



 

Ordinance 13-58 

Page 2 of 3 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 13-58 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 27-22-27-0000-00-066 
 

 
 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  September 5, 2013 MEETING DATE: September 9, 2013

 
 
SUBJECT: 16106 Marsh Road, Suites 102 & 103 (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME My Nite Out 
 PARCEL ID#  04-23-27-0302-03-000 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 

property located at 16106 Marsh Road, Suites 102 and 103 to be used for 
a night time child care facility.  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Avamar Crossing, LLC/My Nite Out, LLC (Daniel Thompson) 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PCD - Planned Commercial District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Commercial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting special exception to allow a portion of 

the building to be used as a night time child care facility.  The PCD 
Zoning district allows child care facilities through special exception 
if it meets the special exception requirements.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Special Exception with the 

conditions contained in the staff report. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

16106 Marsh Road 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 

DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 

   16106 Marsh Road (Child Care Facility) 

    PARCEL ID # 04-23-27-0302-03-000 

    

APPLICANT: My Nite Out, LLC/Daniel Thompson 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 

Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property is located at 16106 Marsh Road, Suites 102 and 103. The map below 

depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 

 



My Nite Out, LLC 

16106 Marsh Road 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 

September 9, 2013 

Page 2 

The request is for a Special Exception Permit to allow a portion of the building (Suites 102 & 

103) to be used for a night time child care facility.  The subject property is located within the 

City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation PCD and is 

designated Commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 

  

EXISTING/PROPOSED USE 

The property contains multiple buildings  with 46,958 square feet of buildings, which contain 

restaurants, a bank, and retail stores.       

The applicant is proposing to rent the two suites which contain 2,400 square feet and open a 

child care facility for a maximum of 36 children.  The child care facilility being proposed will 

not be open during the day, but rather at night.  The proposed business is meant to be a baby 

sitting type of service so parents can schedule a night out and have a professional service as the 

baby sitter.  The proposed hours are from 6:00 PM to 1:30 AM on Friday and Saturday only.   

 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 

The property located to the north is a vacant commercial land, zoned PCD, and in the City of 

Winter Garden. The property to the east is developed with multiple commercial uses including a 

bank, restaurants, and other retail shops, zoned PCD, and in the City of Winter Garden.  The 

property to the south is developed with a storage facility, zoned PCD, and in the City of Winter 

Garden.  The property to the west is vacant land owned by the City of Winter Garden with a 

Conservation Land Use designation, and in the City of Winter Garden. 

   

SUMMARY 

City Staff recommends approval of the proposed special exception permit to operate the child 

care facility at 16106 Marsh Road, Suites 102 and 103 with the following conditions: 

 

1. The child care facility shall be limited to a maximum capacity of 36 children, expansion 

of the facility and/or enrollment of additional children will require additional review and 

amendment to the special exception permit 

2. The proposed child care facility is only approved to operate between the hours of 6:00 

PM and 1:30 AM on Friday and Saturday.  If the owner wants to change the hours and 

days of operation they will need to submit for an amendment to the Special Exception. 

3. No outdoor activities can occur.  All play equipment required by DCF shall be inside the 

building. 

4. No outdoor displays of any kind are allowed. 

5. This Special Exception is approved for this business (My Nite Out) only and shall expire 

if the business relocates or closes. 

6. No additional signage is allowed, all signs shall be consistent with Code requirements.  

 

 

 



My Nite Out, LLC 

16106 Marsh Road 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 

September 9, 2013 

Page 3 

 

 

AERIAL PHOTO 

16106 Marsh Road 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Location of proposed 

child care facility. 




